#### **REGULAR SESSION**

#### MARCH 14, 2016

The City Council of the City of Athens met in Regular Session on Monday, March 14, 2016, 5:30 p.m. in the Derek D. Daniels Conference Room of the Athens Partnership Center, 201 W. Corsicana St., Athens, Texas with the following members present, to-wit:

Jerry D. Vaught, Mayor Monte Montgomery, Mayor Pro-Tem Tres Winn Joe Whatley Charles Elliott

Philip Rodriguez, City Manager Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary Blake Armstrong, City Attorney

others present: David Hopkins, Buddy Hill, Gordon Mayer, Thanasis Kombos, Amy Williams, Janet Melancon, Carol Morton, Chris Tinsley, Kim Wittig, Gordon Mayhall, Ann Stimmel, David Chase, , Shelbie McDiffutt, Blake Stiles, Steve Whigham, Don Houston, Steve Barksdale, Ed McCain, Marion Klutts, Gene Keenon, James Murphy, Zach Bristow and other interested citizens;

constituting a quorum at which time the following proceedings were enacted, to-wit:

The invocation was given by Monte Montgomery.

### DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No action was taken.

#### **CONSENT AGENDA**

- A) Public Hearing concerning an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance No. O-12-01 to add Mobile Food Units (Food Trucks). This item is being tabled until the March 28, 2016 meeting pending a recommendation from the Zoning Commission.
- B) Consider approving the amended minutes of the January 25, 2016 Regular Session.
- C) Consider approving minutes of the January 29, Special Session.
- D) Consider approving minutes of the February 8, 2016 Regular Session.
- E) Consider approving minutes of the February 18, 2016 Special Session.
- F) Consider approving minutes of the February 22, 2016 Regular Session.
- G) Consider approving minutes of the March 4, 2016 Special Session.
- H) Consider approving minutes of the March 8, 2016 Special Session.

Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary, read aloud Public Hearing concerning an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance No. O-12-01 to add Mobile Food Units (Food Trucks). This item is being tabled until the March 28, 2016 meeting pending a recommendation from the Zoning Commission.

A motion was made by Councilmember Montgomery, seconded by Councilmember Elliott to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously.

# OPPORTUNITY FOR CITIZENS TO EXPRESS ITEMS OF CONCERN RELATING TO THE CITY OF ATHENS

There was no discussion.

#### DISCUSS COLEMAN PARK CONCESSION PLAZA AND DONOR PLAQUES

Philip Rodriguez, City Manager stated that Councilmember Elliott wanted to discuss the Concession Plaza and Donor Plaques. Mr. Rodriguez stated there is going to be a new building

and Pavilion and he wanted to open the discussion up to the City Council to find out how they want Staff to proceed in recognizing individuals and how to memorialize the project and particularly the donors who helped to make the project feasible.

Councilmember Whatley stated that one donor was anonymous and asked if she would like the recognition. Mr. Rodriguez stated the anonymous donor would like to be a part of something like this, and she has given a statement that it was for future generations. Mr. Rodriguez stated the second largest donors were Dr. Harold and Stephanie Smitson. He stated other organizations have donated as well.

Mr. Rodriguez stated it would be appropriate to have the Councilmembers and the Parks Board on there.

Councilmember Elliott stated he felt it should be the Parks Board, and the donors should have a plaque and perhaps naming the concession after the anonymous donor.

Mr. Chris Tinsley stated he felt like it should be two (2) separate plaques. He further stated it was not necessary to have a plaque for the Parks Board. Councilmember Winn stated he felt it was absolutely necessary that this Parks Board has been active.

After further discussion, Mr. Rodriguez stated staff will get active and bring proofs back to the City Council.

# DISCUSS OLD HENDERSON COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL PROPERTY; "HIGHEST AND BEST USE"

Mr. Rodriguez stated the demolition of the Old Henderson County Memorial Hospital is nearing completion. He stated staff needs Council's direction on how to proceed with the property itself. He stated it was brought to his attention that the Parks Board would like to make some recommendations for use of the property. He stated private individuals have asked about purchasing the property and some individuals have mentioned new housing.

Mr. Rodriguez stated the term "Highest and Best Use" is a planning term. He asked how we are going to refocus and repurpose the property so that it will be a compliment to the existing neighborhood and businesses.

Councilmember Whatley asked what the Zoning is, with Mr. Rodriguez stating its Residential with some Offices around it. He further stated we would have to look at the Zoning depending on what direction the Council wants to proceed.

Mayor Vaught stated with the housing shortage we have he felt the property is the ideal location for new apartments or a small apartment complex, and he would entertain selling the property for that purpose.

Councilmember Winn stated he would like to hear the Parks Board's recommendation first, before we research and selling it.

Mr. Chris Tinsley stated the Parks Board has had meetings regarding the property to figure out what we wanted to do if the Council came to us. He stated the board doesn't have specific site plans but a general idea of what could be recommended in a very general sense. More of an open space for children. He stated the nursing home is right there and they have nowhere to go walk. He stated more of a London open space with just manicured lawns. He proposed they could incorporate the cupola from the Old Hospital.

Thanasis Kombos, Community Development Manager, stated the Parks Board has reached out to a landscape architect and will bring a sketch back to Council in a few weeks.

Councilmember Elliott stated he wanted to see Athens grow and the City needs housing in this town as bad as we need anything. He stated whether it is apartments or zero lot line homes is what he would be in favor of. He stated the City has an abundance of parks, and the City needs some growth to help us gain population.

Mayor Vaught stated the Council could wait to see what the landscape architect comes up with, however he agrees with Councilmember Elliott that the City needs apartment complexes and houses. He stated if the right company comes in to purchase the property the Council may want to go that route.

Councilmember Whatley, stated he agrees.

Councilmember Montgomery stated he agrees.

Councilmember Winn stated he supports that.

Councilmember Elliott stated the City Manager should put it out for a bid process to find out what a developer would offer for the property and what they are going to bid.

Blake Armstrong, City Attorney, stated that we could do it by Competitive Seal Bid or Auction under Chapter 272. He stated there are notice requirements, but certainly the City has that option.

Mr. Rodriguez stated staff would bring an item back to Council in a couple of weeks regarding the Real Estate Process if we want to sale and also direct the Parks Board to bring forth a recommendation.

Councilmember Winn stated if the other Councilmembers are for selling the property he would not want the Parks Board to do work and then say Council is going to sell it. If the Parks Board has an ideal we could hear it, but if we want to sale it; he supports that 100 percent.

Councilmember Montgomery stated if we do not get the right package with the right development we could send it back to the Parks Board.

Councilmember Winn asked if it is put out for the bid process, can we note we have the right to refuse all bids, with Mr. Armstrong stated that would be standard language for proposals.

Mr. Rodriguez stated that Staff will bring back an item to discuss how we can sale the property.

# DISCUSS ABANDONING A PORTION OF DULL AVERIETTE STREET, AS REQUESTED BY ATHENS INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Mr. Rodriguez stated this item is before Council as a request from Athens Independent School District (AISD). He stated AISD has been in the process of working with an architect and would like to recommend under the configuration that AISD will present. He stated it would require access to Dull Averiette.

Mr. Rodriguez stated that City Staff has worked with AISD Staff and the architects to answer as many questions as we could, and to make sure we knew what we would be seeing this evening. He stated the recommendation in your packet comes with a few things to note. He stated that Staff felt the recommendation to grant the request was appropriate assuming the Council believes that politically.

Mr. Blake Stiles, AISD Superintendent stated that he has Mr. Rob Risko, the School Board President and Kevin Smith, and his associates that will present more details. Mr. Stiles stated "a couple of primary reasons for the request is back in July; Mr. Rodriguez, Chief Buddy Hill and I stood on the corner just watching cars go by. Dull Averiette is a highway right in the middle of a school zone, and we have kids that walk across that street all day long going from class to class

and then at night time if there is a ball game or events it's a circus". He stated they would like to shut that down between Royall and Owen Streets.

Mr. Stiles stated the second reason for the request they are landlocked. He stated they would like to build and a part of their strategic plan that involved a big portion of the community involved a new concession stand and new restrooms at Bruce field. He stated by doing this they can separate the visitors and home fans.

He further stated that AISD has been written up twice by the University Interscholastic League (UIL) twice in the last three years due to fans yelling at officials trying to walk into the field house. He stated they would like to remove the fans from the officials, coaches and players.

Mr. Stiles introduced Kevin Smith with Claycomb Architects.

Mr. Smith introduced other staff members from his company.

Mr. Smith presented to the City Council with a PowerPoint of the proposed drawings of the new athletic fieldhouse and the improvements to Bruce Field.

Councilmember Montgomery asked if the dressing rooms on the West side would be coming down, with Mr. Smith stating yes.

Mr. Smith stated the footprint of the field will remain the same and further stated it the improvements will greatly enhance the traffic flow.

Councilmember Elliott asked how long you have had this plan in your mind that we would close the street with Mr. Smith stating they started looking at the options very early on. Councilmember Elliott asked was it (6) six months ago, with Mr. Smith stating probably. He further stated that does not mean the plan has to have that. Mayor Vaught asked if there was a second plan to see with Mr. Smith stating he did not have a second plan.

Councilmember Elliott stated he travels the street (3) three to (4) times per week he asked how many cars go up and down the street, with Mr. Stiles stating (3,000) three thousand a week and approximately (1,500) fifteen hundred on the weekend. Councilmember Elliott asked where the (3,000) would three thousand cars go when we close the street. Mr. Stiles stated the bigger question is how many of the (3,000) three thousand cars were there for school purposes.

Councilmember Winn stated the cars would have to go around.

Mr. Stiles stated that the speed limit is 20 mph and if traffic is going 40 mph and if kids are walking through at all times of the night and every day of the week it is a safety concern. He further stated that is not the only concern we are doing it for other reasons as well. He stated it will cause people to adjust to a different street. He stated by doing this you create a better and safer environment for our kids and a really nice plaza for our community.

Councilmember Elliott stated we are stopping our citizenry from having access to the street.

Mr. Rob Risko addressed the City Council. He stated it is a safety concern. He stated that at Trinity Valley Community College a young man was hit by a car. He stated an added feature is the students will not have to leave the campus itself. He stated there are other selling points the added tourism that the facility could bring it with the ball games and soccer playoffs. He further stated there are a lot of advantages to this.

Mr. Smith continued with his PowerPoint presentation.

Mayor Vaught stated it was a great plan and it looks great and its going to be incredible, however he stated he feels there was a lot of assuming already done that we were going to abandon the street that upsets me.

After much discussion of abandoning Dull Averiette Mayor Vaught stated there should be a public forum on the next City Council Agenda to obtain public opinion.

#### UTILITY PROJECTS UPDATE

Amy Williams, Director of Development, provided Council with a high level update of (3) three active Utility Projects as well as (1) new potential project that has been identified.

- 1. North Wastewater Treatment Plant Trickling Filter, Geo Technical work has been scheduled, also working to gather the plans on it, some were located, however they are not detailed
- 2. Low pressure in the distribution system, meter data has been provided to KSA along with the addresses and the demand of each meter, as well as providing KSA with a CAD file with all of the water lines
- 3. Highway 19 South Elevated Storage Tank is progressing, she stated the exterior color has been chosen

Ms. Williams stated the newly identified project is at the West Wastewater Treatment Plant. She stated the Clarigester unit has gone out. She stated currently it is operating as a settling tank which is keeping us in compliance. She further stated we are approaching the emergency status with this unit.

## DISCUSS/CONSIDER LOGO DESIGN CONTEST SUBMITTALS

Mr. Rodriguez informed the City Council that the received Logo Designs from the public. He stated that the City received between 40 and 60 submissions. He stated that some of the submissions came from AISD and Trinity Valley Community College Design Class. He stated the Logo Design Committee consisted of the following members:

Michael Hannigan – Henderson County Now

Chad Wilson-Athens Daily Review

Susan Jacobs – Athens Economic Development Corporation

As well as Mayor Vaught and City Staff members, Philip Rodriguez, Amy Williams and Bonnie Hambrick.

Mr. Rodriguez presented the City's current logo that was adopted in 1990. He also presented the 3<sup>rd</sup> place, 2<sup>nd</sup>, and 1<sup>st</sup> place logo designs.

Mayor Vaught stated the new logo gives the City a new fresh look and it makes a statement.

Mayor Vaught stated that Henderson County Now has offered a Public Choice Award in the amount of \$250.00. He stated all submissions will be on display.

A motion was made by Councilmember Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Whatley to approve the new City Logo design submitted by Lisa Ferris. The motion carried unanimously.

### DISCUSS/CONSIDER SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICES CONTRACT

Mr. Rodriguez stated this item is related to action already taken by the City Council during the January 11, 2016 City Council meeting. He stated the trash service delivery would include once a week trash, once a week recycling, and once a week brush services for the City that would include cart service. He stated the City of Athens has been operating under a contract with Republic Services since 1994 and the contract has been updated.

Mr. Rodriguez clarified that the rate sheet in the packet was not correct. He stated it would be once per week trash pickup, and once per week recycle pick up and an extra 95 gallon cart is \$1.00 per month for Residential Customers.

Gene Keenon, Manager Government Affairs/Municipal Services, explained the City Franchise fees.

A motion was made by Councilmember Whatley, seconded by Councilmember Montgomery to approve the Solid Waste and Recycling Services Contract. The motion carried unanimously.

DISCUSS/CONSIDER AUTHORIZING THE CLOSURE OF PRAIRIEVILLE STREET AND TYLER STREET AND APPROVE RESOLUTION AGREEMENT AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT WITH TXDOT FOR THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF STATE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR THE FUNDRAISING EVENT "CELEBRATING THE TEXAN", AS REQUEST BY KIMBERLY D. WITTIG, FUNKY FROG STUDIOS.

Thanasis Kombos, Community Development Manager, stated that on Saturday, April 9th from 11 a.m. to 11 p.m., Athens will host "Celebrating the Texan," He stated it is a fundraising event to benefit the Texan Theater. He stated that Kimberly Wittig is requesting the closure of Prairieville Street and Tyler Street. He stated the event will include live music, a climbing rock wall, and food vendors.

Mr. Kombos stated the City has gone live with a website athenstx.gov to accept donations toward the Texan Theater Project. He also stated that donations can be received at City Hall.

A motion was made by Councilmember Montgomery, seconded by Councilmember Winn to approve the closure of Prairieville Street and Tyler Street and approve a Resolution Agreement authorizing the Mayor to execute the agreement with TxDOT for the temporary closure of state right-of-way for the fundraising event "Celebrating the Texan", as request by Kimberly D. Wittig, Funky Frog Studios. The motion carried unanimously.

# HEAR PRESENTATION REGARDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE TEXAN THEATER PROJECT FROM ARCHITECTURAL FIRM, ARCHITEXAS

Mr. Kombos stated that ArchiTexas was presented as the best rated architectural firm that came from the RFQ process. He introduced David Chase who is the Principal in charge for the project and Ann Stimmel, Project Architech for ArchiTexas.

Mr. David Chase presented an overview of his firm.

Councilmember Montgomery asked if the building was pre 1930. He stated he was informed that there may be grant monies available.

Ms. Stimmel's stated that their firm has a Senior Preservation Specialist that researches opportunities for grant money.

DISCUSS/CONSIDER A RESOLUTION NOMINATING TWO CANDIDATES TO THE BOARD OF MANAGERS, HENDERSON COUNTY 9-1-1 COMMUNICATION DISTRICT

Ms. Hambrick informed the Council that the terms of Mrs. Brownlow and Mr. Becton expire April 31st. She stated that both expressed interest in continuing to serve on the Henderson County 9-1-1 Communication District Board.

Ms. Hambrick stated that Mr. Don Houston, Executive Director was in the audience.

Mr. Houston provided background information on both board members. He stated his board passed a Resolution and now he is seeking the City of Athens concurrence for the reappointments.

A motion was made by Councilmember Whatley, seconded by Councilmember Elliott to approve the Resolution nominating two candidates to the Board of Managers, Henderson County 9-1-1 Communication District. The motion carried unanimously.

#### DISCUSS/CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO ZONING COMMISSION

Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary, stated that Chris Tinsley and Donna Meredith have served two (2) consecutive terms on the Zoning Commission, and are not eligible for reappointment. She stated that Mr. William Pruitt has expressed interest in serving and a copy of his board's application was provided in the packet.

After discussion this item was tabled.

# DISCUSS/CONSIDER AN ORDER CANCELING THE MAY 7, 2016 CITY OF ATHENS GENERAL ELECTION

Ms. Hambrick explained that the (2) two of the incumbents have filed and one new application for place on the ballot was filed with there being no opposition, therefore this Order will cancel the May 7, 2016 City of Athens General Election.

A motion was made by Councilmember Montgomery, seconded by Councilmember Whatley to approve an order canceling the May 7, 2016 City of Athens General Election. The motion carried unanimously.

DISCUSS/CONSIDER FINAL PLAT OF HEATON ADDITION, OWNED BY FULL SIGHT LLC AND TNA ATHENS COMPLEX LLC (1260 S. PALESTINE STREET)

Gordon Mayer informed Council that the proposed subdivision is located on the West Side of S. Palestine Street and this plat proposes (3) lots on a 10.291 acre tract. He stated the final plat meets the requirements of the subdivision Ordinance.

A motion was made Councilmember Elliott, and seconded by Councilmember Winn to approve the final plat of Heaton Addition, owned by Full Sight LLC and TNA Athens Complex LLC (1260 S. Palestine Street). The motion carried unanimously.

DISCUSS/CONSIDER AUTHORIZING COLLECTION AGREEMENT WITH MCCREARY VESELKA BRAGG & ALLEN (MVBA)

David Hopkins, Director of Finance, explained that American Municipal Services currently collects the delinquent fines. He stated that Article 103.0031, Code of Criminal Procedure provides for the imposition of a collection fee of thirty percent (30%) on all delinquent fines and fees at no cost to the City. He stated that staff is recommending a change to McCreary Veselka Bragg & Allen as our collection agent. He stated MVBA is currently collecting the City's delinquent property taxes and he hopes this change will clear some of the fines receivable on the balance sheet. He stated that currently there is 1.6 million delinquent fines on the book. He stated it is not just about collection, it is also about finding out if someone has passed away it can be removed from the balance sheet.

Mayor Vaught asked if the City has \$ 1,697,000 in delinquent fines, with Mr. Hopkins stating yes.

Mayor Vaught asked why this has been allowed to go on so long without it being brought to Councils attention. Mr. Hopkins stated that we have always had a collection agency but the fines have gone up in recent years due to the change in the Judge's philosophy on what fines are assessed, and how much time is given for time served. He stated that we need a firm that will be more aggressive.

Mayor Vaught stated that we've needed a firm a long time ago that we be more aggressive. He stated it is disturbing that we have that much in fines, and it is just now being brought to Council's attention.

A motion was made by Councilmember Montgomery, seconded by Councilmember Winn to approve the Collection Agreement with McCreary Veselka Bragg & Allen. The motion carried unanimously.

# DISCUSS/CONSIDER AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF FIVE (5) VEHICLES, ONE (1) UTILITY TRACTOR, AND ONE (1) COMPACT TRACK LOADER, THROUGH THE STATE OF TEXAS PURCHASING CONTRACT AND THE BUYBOARD PURCHASING CONTRACT

Ms. Williams, informed Council that Funding was authorized in the FY 15-16 adopted budget for the purchase of two (2) <sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> ton pickups and two (2) 1 ton dual wheel utility trucks, and one (1) utility tractor in the Utility Fund; one (1) dump truck and one (1) compact track loader in the Street Department. Each vehicle will be replacing older models and higher mileage vehicles. Funding in the amount of \$165,000 was budgeted in the Utility Fund and \$131,500 budgeted in the Street Department for the purchases.

Ms. Williams stated that the purchases were identified in the Council packet.

A motion was made by Councilmember Whatley, seconded by Councilmember Winn to approve the purchase of five (5) vehicles, one (1) utility tractor, and one (1) compact track loader, through the State of Texas Purchasing Contract and the Buyboard Purchasing Contract. The motion carried by the following vote: Ayes: Mayor Vaught, Councilmembers Montgomery, Winn, and Whatley. Nays: None. Councilmember Elliott abstained.

### DISCUSS/CONSIDER AUTHORIZING RECLASSIFICATION OF DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES TO HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGER AND CREATING A HUMAN RESOURCES CLERK POSITON TO SUPPORT THE HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT AND THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE

Janet Melancon, Interim Human Resources Director, explained that currently the Human Resources Department has one position, Director of Human Resources, supporting all duties and responsibilities in the areas of: recruitment and hiring, employee relations, compensation and classification, benefits and insurance, training and development, job descriptions and performance management, personnel policies and records management, regulatory compliance, risk management and safety, engagement and retention, Civil Service, and other related programs. The current staffing of one director is inadequate to handle the vast amount and variety of work that comes through the Human Resources Department on a day to day basis. She stated Staff is recommending the reclassification of the Human Resource Director to Manager and that will free up funding to bring on a Clerical position. She further stated there will be a need for an additional \$24,000 in order to bring on the Clerical position. She stated this position will also support the City Manager's office.

Councilmember Elliott stated that he is aware of people in charge of the HR department in private companies that have over 400 employees and they do not have an assistant.

Ms. Melancon stated when she came into the role she was surprised there was not administrative support. She stated she spent 90% performing the day to day activities such as speaking with vendors, responding to emails, and it has been very difficult to free up any of her time to do anything other than the day to day activities. She stated it is very much needed in this role.

Councilmember Winn asked if we were hiring (3) three people. Ms. Melancon clarified that she is asking to reclassify HR Director to HR Manager and this will free up funds to hire an HR Clerk who will provide Clerical and Administrative Support.

Mr. Rodriguez stated that Ms. Melancon was brought on board to assist him in understanding what was taking place in the Human Resources, and secondly, the City has not been proactive in Human Resources. He stated we have not been able to keep up with compensation studies. He stated the personnel policy has not been dissected since the early nineties and we need to look at it. He stated the day to day activities prevent us from do so.

Councilmember Whatley asked where the money would come from, with Mr. Rodriguez stating we would utilize the unallocated fund balance.

Councilmember Montgomery asked if both positions would require a car allowance, with Mr. Rodriguez stating there is no car allowance for the Clerk.

After much discussion, a motion was made by Councilmember Winn, seconded by Councilmember Whatley to approve the reclassification of Director of Human Resources to Human Resources Manager and creating a Human Resources Clerk position to support the Human Resources Department and the City Manager's Office.

The motion carried by the following vote: Ayes: Mayor Vaught, Councilmembers Elliott, Winn, and Whatley; Nays: Councilmember Montgomery; Abstained: None.

EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY) i. CENTRAL PARK PROPERTY

EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY REGARDING CONTEMPLATED AND PENDING LITIGATION: PETER RUNNING, JAMIE RUNNING, CINDY WILKINS AND DR. VERNON JOHNSON

The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:00 p.m.

The City Council returned to Regular Session at 8:45 p.m.

CONSIDER ACTION RESULTING FROM DELIBERATIONS IN EXECUTIVE SESSION

i. CENTRAL PARK PROPERTY

A motion was made Councilmember Winn, seconded by Councilmember Whatley authorizing the City Manager, and Mayor to meet with college officials concerning the purchase of Central Park. The motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Councilmember Winn, seconded by Councilmember Whatley to schedule a public hearing pursuant to Section 2.04 of the Athens City Charter concerning Central Park. The motion carried unanimously.

CONSIDER ACTION RESULTING FROM DELIBERATIONS IN EXECUTIVE SESSION REGARDING CONTEMPLATED AND PENDING LITIGATION: PETER RUNNING, JAMIE RUNNING, CINDY WILKINS AND DR. VERNON JOHNSON

No action taken.

### CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE

No updates.

#### MAYOR AND COUNCIL UPDATE

No updates.

#### ADJOURN

The meeting was adjourned.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 11<sup>th</sup> DAY OF APRIL, 2016.

Jerry D. Vaught, Mayor

ATTEST:

Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary